
 
 

Agenda 

 
 

Standards Committee 
 
 

Date: Monday 24 June 2019 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: St Aldate's Room - Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact the Committee 
Services Officer:  

Catherine Phythian, Committee and Member Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 2522402 

Email: cphythian@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 

 
If you intend to record the meeting, it would be helpful if you speak to the 
Committee Services Officer before the start of the meeting. 



 
 

 

Standards Committee 
 
Membership 
Chair*    

 
Vice-Chair*   

 
Members 
(with 
substitutes) 

Councillor Shaista Aziz  

 Councillor Michael Gotch  

 Councillor Pat Kennedy  

 Councillor Ben Lloyd-Shogbesan  

 Councillor Susanna Pressel  

 Councillor Sian Taylor  

 Councillor Christine Simm  

 

The full membership is seven councillors and the quorum for this meeting is three members.   

Substitute members are permitted and are shown above where notification of apologies and 
substitutes were received before the agenda was published. Apologies and substitutions sent 
after publication will be reported at the meeting.  

*Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these roles. 
 

Other attendees (advisory role, no voting rights): 

Independent Persons Chris Ballinger Godfrey Cole 
 Jill McCleery Ben Simpson 
 
Parish Council 
representative 

 
Cllr Dorian Hancock 

 

 
 

Copies of this agenda 

 
Reference copies are available to consult in the Town Hall Reception. Agendas are published 6 
working days before the meeting and the draft minutes a few days after. 

 

All agendas, reports and minutes are available online and can be: 

- viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- downloaded from our website 

- viewed using the computers in the Customer Services, St Aldate’s, or 

- subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20169/council_meetings
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/ielogon.aspx?lp=1&RPID=2852798&HPID=2852798&Forms=1&META=mgSubscribeLogon


 
 

AGENDA 
 

  Pages 

1   Apologies for Absence  

2   Election of Chair for the Council year 2019-20  

 Recommendation: 

To elect a Chair for the Council year 2019-20. 
 

 

3   Election of Vice Chair for the Council year 2019-20  

 Recommendation: 

To elect a Chair for the Council year 2019-20. 
 

 

4   Declarations of Interest  

5   Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and individual 
dispensations - 1 February 2019 until 31 May 2019 

7 - 12 

 Purpose of report:  

To advise the Committee of: 

1. the number of complaints received under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct which have been, or are to be, considered by the Head of 
Law and Governance (in her statutory capacity as the authority’s 
Monitoring Officer) and the Independent Persons. The report also 
notes the outcome, where complaints have been concluded; and 

2. the number of dispensations to an individual member, granted under 
Section 33 of the 2011 Localism Act, by the Monitoring Officer, 
following consultation with an Independent Person. 

 
Recommendation:  

That the Standards Committee notes the content of the report. 
 

 

6   Appointment of independent persons 2019 13 - 14 

 This report informs the Committee on the progress for the appointment of 
Independent Persons in 2019. 
 
Recommendation:  That the Standards Committee resolves to: 

1. note the progress on the appointment of Independent Persons in 
2019; 

2. agree to appoint one opposition member of the Standards 
Committee to serve on the interview panel as required at paragraph 

 



 
 

5, ii) of the report. 
 

7   Review of Member training in Quarter 1 2019/20 15 - 18 

 This report details the programme of training delivered to members in Q1 
2019/20. 
 
Recommendation: That the Standards Committee resolves to note the 
review of the programme of training delivered to members in Q1 2019/20. 
 

 

8   Update report - Committee on Standards in Public Life 19 - 34 

 This report informs the Committee of the progress in implementing the 
recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life report on 
Local Government Ethical Standards. 
 
Recommendation: That the Standards Committee resolves to: 

a) note the report; and  

b) consider whether there are any particular recommendations from the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life that the Committee would like to 
consider further at a future meeting. 

 

 

9   Minutes of the previous meeting 35 - 40 

 Recommendation: to approve the minutes of the Standards Committee 
meeting held on 25 February 2019 as a true and accurate record. 
 

 

10   Dates of future meetings  

 The Committee is scheduled to meet at 6.00pm on the following dates: 

 16 September 2019 

 2 December 2019 

 2 March 2020 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 
 

 
Councillors declaring interests  

General duty 

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that 
“you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 

 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 24 June 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer  

Title of Report:  Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and 
individual dispensations – 1 February 2019 until 31 
May 2019 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To advise the Committee of: 

1. The number and status of complaints received 
under the Members’ Code of Conduct which have 
been, or are to be, considered by the Head of Law 
and Governance (in her statutory capacity as the 
authority’s Monitoring Officer) in consultation 
with the Independent Persons.  

2. The number of dispensations to an individual 
member, granted under Section 33 of the 2011 
Localism Act, by the Monitoring Officer, following 
consultation with an Independent Person. 

Key decision: No 

Recommendation:  

That the Standards Committee notes the content of the report. 

 

Introduction and background  

1. In compliance with legislation relating to the standards and conduct of elected 
councillors, the Council has in place complaints handling arrangements to 
enable an individual to make a formal complaint that an elected or co-opted 
member of the City Council, or of a Parish Council within the City Council’s 
area, has failed to comply with the authority’s Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
2. The Standards Committee is responsible for promoting high standards of 

ethical behaviour by developing, maintaining and monitoring the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.  This report from the Monitoring Officer which identifies any 
issues or learning points arising from the complaints received contributes to that 
monitoring process.  

 

7

Agenda Item 5



 

 

3. The key stages of the complaints handling arrangements can be summarised 
as: 

Initial tests The Monitoring Officer will apply the following “initial tests” 
to the complaint: 
• It is a complaint against one or more named councillors 

of Oxford City Council or a Parish Council within the city 
boundaries;  

• The named councillor was in office at the time of the 
alleged conduct and the Code of Conduct was in force 
at the time;  

 The complaint, if proven, would be a breach of the 
Code under which the councillor was operating at the 
time of the alleged misconduct. 

Assessment  The complaint will be assessed and a decision made by 
the Council’s Monitoring Officer in consultation with an 
Independent Person as to the next steps.  At this stage the 
options open to the Monitoring Officer are:   

 No further action  

 Informal resolution brokered by the Monitoring Officer 
and/or Group Leader  

 Referred for investigation  

 Referred to the police or other regulatory agency 

Investigation A formal investigation may be conducted by an officer from 
Oxford City Council, an officer from another local authority 
or an independent investigator. 

The investigating officer will review the complaint and 
supporting evidence and may interview some or all of the 
people concerned. 

The investigating officer will then produce a draft report. 
The complainant and the councillor concerned will 
normally have an opportunity to comment on the draft 
report.  The investigating officer will then submit the report 
to the Monitoring Officer.   

Local Hearing The Monitoring Officer will consider the findings of the 
investigation and, in consultation with the Independent 
Person(s), determine what action to take.  At this stage the 
options open to the Monitoring Officer are:   

 Local Hearing – complaint to be determined by the 
Standards Committee; 

 Local Resolution - a fair resolution of the complaint 
which is acceptable to all parties brokered by the 
Monitoring Officer; or 

 No action - complaint dismissed  

 

  

8



 

 

Complaints made against members of Oxford City Council or a Parish 
Council 

4. In the period 1 February 2019 up to and including 31 May 2019 the Monitoring 
Officer dealt with the following complaints:  

Ref Date City/Parish Code – alleged breach in  behaviour 

14755 Nov 2018 Parish Honesty & Integrity 
Leadership 
General obligations 

15202 May 2019 Oxford City Objectivity 
Respect for Others 
Impartiality 

 
5. The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person(s), 

considered the complaints and made the following decision in relation to 
Complaint (ref: 14755): 

Action  Reference 

Assessment  City Parish 

 No action No further action should be taken in 
respect of the allegation 

14755  

 Informal 
resolution 

Referred to the Monitoring Officer 
and/or Group Leader for informal 
resolution 

  

 Investigation Referred for formal external 
investigation  

  

 Referral Referred to the police or other 
regulatory agency 

  

Local Hearing 

 Local 
Resolution 

A fair resolution of the complaint 
which is acceptable to all parties  

  

 No action Complaint dismissed as no breach 
of the Code of Conduct 

  

 
6. The status of complaint (ref: 14755) was noted at the previous meeting of the 

Standards Committee on 25 February 2019.  In December 2018 the complaint 
had been assessed by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with an 
Independent Person and the decision had been taken to refer the matter for 
investigation as the complaint concerned allegations of a potentially serious 
nature which had a bearing on the reputation of both the Subject Councillor and 
on the Parish Council and the allegations, if proven to have been undertaken in 
an official capacity, could constitute a breach of the Code of Conduct. 

 
7. However, in light of the subsequent resignations of the Subject Councillor and 

one of the Complainants and confirmation by the Complainants that they no 
longer wished to pursue their complaint the Monitoring Officer, in consultation 
with an Independent Person, determined that the public interest would not be 
served by referring the case for investigation. The Monitoring Officer’s Decision 
Notice is published on the Council’s website, under the Standards Committee. 

9



 

 

  
8. Since the last meeting of the Standards Committee the Monitoring Officer has 

received one new complaint (ref:15202) from a member of the public against a 
member of the city council concerning alleged behaviours when canvassing for 
the local elections in March 2019.  This complaint is under consideration by the 
Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent Person. The Monitoring 
Officer may be in a position to provide a verbal update on the status of this 
complaint at the Standards Committee meeting.  

 
9. No broader learning points have been identified in relation to these complaints. 
 
Dispensations granted to an individual Member 

10. The Localism Act 2011 prevents Members from participating in any business of 
the Council where they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) unless they 
have sought a dispensation under Section 33 of the Act.  Applications must be 
made in writing and dispensations may be sought for a period of up to four 
years. 

11. On 1 October 2018 Council granted a general dispensation, to remain in force 
for a period of 4 years (ending on 30 September 2022), to all Oxford City 
Council Members and co-opted Members, to speak and vote where they would 
otherwise have a DPI in the following matters:  

 Determining an allowance (including special responsibility allowances), 
travelling expense, payment or indemnity given to Members 

 Housing: where the Member (or spouse or partner) holds a tenancy or 
lease with the Council as long as the matter does not relate to the 
particular tenancy or lease of the Member (their spouse or partner); 

 Housing Benefit/Universal Credit: where the Councillor (or spouse or 
partner) receives housing benefit; 

 Any Ceremonial Honours given to Members; 

 Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government and 
Finance Act 1992 (or any subsequent legislation); and  

 Setting a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme or Local scheme for the 
payment of business rates (including eligibility for rebates and reductions) 
for the purposes of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 (or any 
subsequent legislation) 

 
12. In October 2018 Council also delegated the granting of dispensations to an 

individual member under Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011 to the 
Monitoring Officer, following consultation with an Independent Person.  

13. In the period covered by this report there have been no requests for an 
individual dispensation under Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
Legal implications 

14. The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to have a Code of Conduct which 
sets out the standards expected of Members whenever they act in their official 

10



 

 

capacity. The Code must also have in place a suitable procedure at a local 
level to investigate and determine allegations against elected Members and 
co-opted Members. The Council is also responsible for having arrangements 
in place to investigate and determine allegations against Parish Councillors. 

 
Financial implications 

15. There is a cost to the authority when a complaint is referred for external 
investigation this is determined by market factors in terms of the availability of 
investigators identified through complaint procurement processes.  

 
Risk management 

16. If the Council fails to adopt and maintain a Code of Conduct and process for 
the investigation of complaints which is fit for purpose, robust and transparent 
then there are risks to the Council’s reputation and also to the integrity of its 
corporate governance and decision-making processes as it will not be 
compliant with legislation. Formal consideration of requests for dispensation 
minimises the risk of the Council not following lawful procedures in respect of 
members’ interests.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Members Services Officer 

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402   

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk  

 

11

mailto:cphythian@oxford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 24 June 2019 

Report of: Head of Law and Governance 

Title of Report:  Appointment of Independent Persons in 2019  

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: This report informs the Committee on the progress for the 
appointment of Independent Persons in 2019. 

Key decision: No 

Recommendation:  That the Standards Committee resolves to: 

1. note the progress on the appointment of Independent Persons in 2019; 

2. agree to appoint one opposition member of the Standards Committee to 
serve on the interview panel as required at paragraph 5, ii) of the report.  

 

Introduction and background  

1. The Localism Act 2011 (“The Act”) (Section 28, subsections (7) and (8)) requires 
the Council to appoint one or more Independent Persons. 

  
2. The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)(Amendment) Regulations 2015 

(“The Regulations”) require the Council to invite relevant Independent Persons to 
a Panel (being a committee appointed by the authority under section 102(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972) for the purposes of advising the authority on matters 
relating to dismissal of relevant officers of the authority(the chief executive, the 
chief finance officer and the monitoring officer). 

 
3. At the meeting on 11 September 2018 the Standards Committee agreed to note 

and approve the Monitoring Officer’s proposed arrangements for the appointment 
of independent persons in July 2019.   

 
4. This report informs the Committee on the progress for the appointment of 

Independent Persons in 2019. 
  
5. The Monitoring Officer has commenced a formal recruitment exercise for the 

appointment of Independent Persons based on the following principles: 

i. The recruitment exercise to include advertisement, application and 
interview  

13

Agenda Item 6



ii. The interview panel to consist of the Monitoring Officer, Chair of the 
Standards Committee and one opposition member from the Standards 
Committee 

iii. The term of appointment to be for 5 years (to July 2024) 

iv. The Independent Person “job description” to be approved by the 
Monitoring Officer to be expanded to include considering evidence and 
advising Council on the course of action for the Disciplinary Committee to 
follow whenever there is the prospect of dismissal of a statutory officer 

v. The statutory restrictions on eligibility shall apply 

vi. Any application from an existing Independent Person to be considered on 
its merits 

vii. The appointments to be confirmed at Full Council in July 2019 with a 
positive vote by a majority of councillors 

 
12. The advert for the recruitment of the Independent Persons will be published in the 

local press and on the Council’s website in early June. 
 
13. The interview dates are to be confirmed but are expected to take place in late 

June or early July. 
 
Legal implications 

14. To comply with the combined requirements of the Act and the Regulations, the 
Council should appoint at least two Independent Persons. 

 
Financial implications 

15. The decision to proceed with a recruitment exercise for the appointment of 
Independent Persons in 2019 carries a modest financial burden which will be 
accommodated in the 2019/20 Member Support budget. 

 
Risk management 

16. Failing to appoint an Independent Person would place the Council in breach of its 
statutory duty under the Act and prevent the Monitoring Officer from dealing with 
complaints in accordance with the Council’s code of conduct complaints 
procedure. In addition in the event of there being a need to consider dismissal of a 
relevant officer and the Council not having appointed at least two Independent 
Persons the Council would be required to approach another local authority to seek 
to invite their appointed Independent Persons to form part of a Panel in 
accordance with Regulation 6 paragraph 5 of the Regulations. 

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Members Services Officer 

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402   

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk  

 

14

mailto:cphythian@oxford.gov.uk


 

 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 24 June 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer  

Title of Report:  Member training 2019/20 – Q1 review 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To review the programme of training delivered to 
members in Q1 2019/20. 

Recommendations: That the Standards Committee resolves to:  

1.  Note the review of the programme of training delivered to members in Q1 
2019/20. 

 

Introduction and background  

1. In November 2018 Council adopted a revised Constitution which included a change 
to broaden the remit of the Standards Committee to enable the committee to 
receive reports from and advise the Monitoring Officer on all aspects of member 
training, not just training on ethical issues.   
 

2. As 2019/20 is a non-election year the current member training programme is based 
on the following principles:  

 

 
Compulsory training 

 Code of Conduct 
3. All members have signed up to attend one of the three training sessions that have 

been scheduled: 

In non-election years:  
• All members to attend compulsory code of conduct training before 31 

July. 
• All licensing committee members to attend compulsory licensing training 

before 31 July. 

• All members to be invited to attend optional planning seminars during 
the year. 

15

Agenda Item 7



6 June 2019  17.30 – 19.00hrs 14  

18 June 2019 17.30 – 19.00hrs 25 

4 July 2019 14.30 – 16.00hrs 9 

 

4. Feedback from the first of these sessions has been very positive.  The training 
material has been refreshed to include new case studies, a quiz and more time for 
discussion. 
 
Licensing 

5. The fifteen councillors who are members of one or both of the Licensing and 
Gambling Acts Committee and the General Purposes Licensing Committee are 
required to attend a training session before 31 July. A training session was held on 
14 May 2019 immediately after the first licensing committee meetings.  It had been 
hoped that all the licensing committee members could be trained at that time but 
unfortunately only seven members were able attend. A second training session is 
being scheduled for July.  If possible this will coincide with a special meeting of the 
General Purposes Licensing Committee. 

 
 Unconscious Bias 
6. Two training sessions on Unconscious Bias, facilitated by Inclusive Employers were 

held on 22 May 2019.  Inclusive Employers were recommended by the 
Organisational Development Manager, as they had been engaged previously to 
provide the unconscious bias training for Council line managers and for those 
elected members serving on the Council’s Appointments Committee.   

 
7. Seven members attended these two sessions. Three other councillors had booked 

to attend the sessions but sent apologies on the day. The training was badged as 
optional and details were circulated by email to all councillors on three occasions 
(1/5/19; 15/5/19; 20/5/19).  This low attendance was in part due to the relatively 
short notice given for these sessions (3 weeks) and the choice of a date that turned 
out to be so close to the European Election. 

 
8. Feedback was generally positive and there was recognition that the course had 

promoted some personal reflection and “suggestions and practical ways we can 
improve our decision making and remove/mitigate bias”. 

 
9. If we were to repeat these sessions we would wish to secure a higher attendance 

rate in order to obtain better value for money. 
 
Optional training programme 2019-20 

Planning Viability Assessments 
10. Twenty members attended the training session on Planning Viability Assessments 

held on 16 May 2019. The training was delivered by a consultant, who works 
regularly with the Council’s planning officers on applications for developments 
which require a viability assessment.  The session covered viability in the national 
planning policy context, key features of a development viability assessment and 
site value. 

16



11. The training on this complex topic was well received and a repeat session will be 
scheduled over the summer.  These sessions are intended to set the scene so that 
members are familiar with the concepts when they are considering the specifics of 
the viability assessments for large planning developments.  

 
Social Media 

12. Following the introduction of the Social Media Protocol in early 2019 councillors 
were invited to participate in a short questionnaire about their use of social media 
and any related training needs.  The responses are summarised below: 

33 responses 

5 Do not use social media – do not require training 

2 Do not use social media – require training to start  

11 Use social media – do not require training 

15 Use social media – require training  

13. The specified training needs included getting started on social media, building 
engagement and two-way dialogue and guidance on the legalities of using social 
media.   

14. To meet this training need a couple of social media workshop for groups of 5 or 6 
councillors, facilitated by Tom Jennings, Senior Communications Officer, will be 
scheduled over the summer (dates to be confirmed).    
 

Mental wellbeing 
15. The Member Mental Health Challenge Panel has fed back on the need for mental 

health and wellbeing support to be made available to councillors.  In response, 
councillors have been given access to the Employee Assistance Programme (a 
helpline) and to the corporate Mental Health First Aiders; officers who have 
undertaken a two day training course.  The Scrutiny Committee has suggested that 
training on mental wellbeing should be made available to councillors.  Committee 
and Member Services will canvas councillors’ interest in this as it would be possible 
for a condensed version of the two-day Mental Health First Aid course to be 
delivered to councillors by the Organisational Development Team. 

 
Individual member attendance at external training courses 2019/20 

16. The Deputy Leader is scheduled to attend the LGiU Seminar: An Introduction to 
Local Government Finance on 21 June 2019 in London. 

 
Briefing sessions 2019-20 

17. Provisional dates for a member briefing session have been scheduled monthly 
throughout 2019-20 and published as part of the annual calendar of meetings. 
Councillors are sent regular invitations and reminders about the different sessions.  
The following sessions are scheduled to take place in Q1: 

2019 Attendees 

Booked Present 

31 January Housing Benefit & Universal 8 9 

17



Credit (repeat session) 

26 March Housing & Homelessness 14 10 

3 June Oxford Waterways Project 9 8 

17 June A new approach to managing the 
capital programme 

  

25 June Oxford Living Wage   

2 July Acting on Climate Change   

 
18. Low attendance has been an issue in the past but this has improved slightly in 

recent years.  Committee and Member Services reserve the right to cancel any 
briefing session with fewer than 6 confirmed attendees.  Although the overall 
numbers may be close there is not always a direct correlation between those 
members who book to attend a session and those members who turn up on the 
day. 

 
Legal implications 

19. This report has no direct legal implications for the Council.   
 
Financial implications 

20. This report has no direct financial implications for the Council. The development 
and delivery of specific training courses in future years will require appropriate 
budgetary provision. 

 
Risk management 

21. The provision of appropriate training and development courses for councillors is 
necessary to support good governance and decision making. Failure to do this 
places the Council at risk of reputational damage and legal challenge.  

 

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Member Services  

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402  

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

18



 

. 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 24 June 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer / Head of Law and Governance 

Title of Report:  Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local 
Government Ethical Standards  

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: This report informs the Committee of the progress in 
implementing the recommendations of the Committee 
on Standards in Public Life report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards. 

Key decision: No 

Recommendation:  

That the Standards Committee resolves to: 

a) note the report; and  

b) consider whether there are any particular recommendations from the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life that the Committee would like 
to consider further at a future meeting. 

Appendix 1 List of Recommendations 

Appendix 2 Publication of councillors’ and candidates’ home 
addresses 

Appendix 3 List of Best Practice  

 

Introduction and background  

1. In 2018 the Committee on Standards in Public Life (“the CSPL”) undertook a review 
of local government ethical standards. The CSPL considers that robust standards 
arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain high standards 
of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government.  

 
2. The CSPL published the Local Government Ethical Standards report on 30 January 

2019 (the CSPL report).  
 
3. The CSPL report contains 26 recommendations which are listed in Appendix 1.  

Many of these recommendations will involve legislative change. The Government 
has yet to publish a formal response to the CSPL report.  

19

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report


 

4. In March 2019 the Minister for Local Government wrote to the leaders of all local 
authorities regarding changes to the rules applying to local government elections 
on the “publication of councillors’ and candidates’ home addresses” (Appendix 2). 
The changes presented were the subject of a recommendation in the Parliamentary 
Committee on Standards in Public Life report: ‘Review of Intimidation in Public Life’ 
and also form part of Recommendation 2 of the CSPL report. These changes were 
in place for the local and European elections in May 2019. 

 
5. The same letter also referenced a further recommendation from that same report 

(Review of Intimidation in Public Life) concerning the “handling of sensitive 
interests” and the action on local authority monitoring officers to ensure that 
councillors required to declare pecuniary interests are aware of the sensitive 
interest provisions in the Localism Act 2011.  This issue is included as part of the 
compulsory Code of Conduct training to be delivered by the Monitoring Officer to all 
City Councillors in June and July 2019. 

 
6. The CSPL report includes 15 best practice proposals for local authorities to 

implement. The CSPL has said that it will review the progress on implementation in 
2020. Appendix 3 lists those best practice proposals and summarises the 
Council’s progress in implementing them.  10 of the best practice proposals are 
already in place and the remaining 5 are under consideration within the Council or 
in consultation with the other Oxfordshire authorities since they each adopted the 
same shared code of conduct.  It is anticipated that the Council will be able to 
demonstrate compliance with each of the best practice recommendations by early 
2020. 

 
Legal implications 

7. None – for information only. 
 
Financial implications 

8. None – for information only. 
 
Risk management 

9. None – for information only. 
 

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Members Services Officer 

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402   

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk  

 

 

20

mailto:cphythian@oxford.gov.uk


    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

# Recommendation Responsible body OCC responsibility  Status 

 

1 

The Local Government Association should create 

an updated model code of conduct, in 

consultation with representative bodies of 

councillors and officers of all tiers of local 

government. 

Local Government 
Association 

MO 

OSMOG (Oxfordshire Monitoring 

Officers’ Group) 

Council 

 

 
 

 
2 

The government should ensure that candidates 

standing for or accepting public offices are not 

required publicly to disclose their home address. 

The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interests) Regulations 2012 should be amended 

to clarify that a councillor does not need to 

register their home address on an authority’s 

register of interests. 

Government 

 

MO 

Elections 

ROI form & guidance 

Implemented in 
relation to 
election 
candidates – 
see paragraph 
and 4 and 
Appendix 2 

 
 

3 

Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an 

official capacity in their public conduct, including 

statements on publicly accessible social media. 

Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be 

amended to permit local authorities to presume 

so when deciding upon code of conduct 

breaches. 

Government 

Legislative  

MO 

Code of Conduct & complaints 

 

21



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

 
4 

Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should 

be amended to state that a local authority’s code 

of conduct applies to a member when they claim 

to act, or give the impression they are acting, in 

their capacity as a member or as a representative 

of the local authority. 

Government 

Legislative  

MO 

Code of Conduct & complaints 

 

 
 

5 

The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interests) Regulations 2012 should be amended 

to include: unpaid directorships; trusteeships; 

management roles in a charity or a body of a 

public nature; and membership of any 

organisations that seek to influence opinion or 

public policy. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO  

 
 

6 

Local authorities should be required to establish a 

register of gifts and hospitality, with councillors 

required to record any gifts and hospitality 

received over a value of £50, 

or totalling £100 over a year from a single 

source. This requirement should be included 

in an updated model code of conduct. 

Government MO 

OCC chose to introduce this at 
the start of 2019 

OSMOG re Code of Conduct  

Current 
practice for 
OCC 

To be included 
in revised Code 
of Conduct 

22



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

 

 
 

7 

Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 should be 

repealed, and replaced with a requirement that 

councils include in their code of conduct that a 

councillor must not participate in a discussion or 

vote in a matter to be considered at a meeting if 

they have any interest, whether registered or not, 

“if a member of the public, with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, would reasonably regard the 

interest as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 

your consideration or decision-making in relation to 

that matter”. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO 

OSMOG re Code of Conduct  

 

 
8 

The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to 

require that Independent Persons are appointed 

for a fixed term of two years, renewable once. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO OCC will 
appoint for 5 
year term in 
2019 

 

 
9 

The Local Government Transparency Code 

should be updated to provide that the view of 

the Independent Person in relation to a 

decision on which they are consulted should 

be formally recorded in any decision notice or 

minutes. 

Government MO  

 

 
10 

A local authority should only be able to 

suspend a councillor where the authority’s 

Independent Person agrees both with the 

finding of a breach and that suspending the 

councillor would be a proportionate 

sanction. 

Government MO 

Update to complaints handling 
documentation 

 

 

23



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

11 

Local authorities should provide legal 

indemnity to Independent Persons if their 

views or advice are disclosed. The 

government should require this through 

secondary legislation if needed. 

Government / all 

local authorities 

Legislative 

MO  

 

 
12 

Local authorities should be given the discretionary 

power to establish a decision-making standards 

committee with voting independent members 

and voting members from dependent parishes, to 

decide on allegations and impose sanctions. 

Government Council  

 

13 

Councillors should be given the right to appeal 

to the Local Government Ombudsman if their 

local authority imposes a period of suspension 

for breaching the code of conduct. 

Government MO 

OSMOG re Code of Conduct 

Update to complaints handling 
documentation 

 

 

 

 

 

14 

The Local Government Ombudsman should be 

given the power to investigate and decide upon 

an allegation of a code of conduct breach by a 

councillor, and the appropriate sanction, on 

appeal by a councillor who has had a suspension 

imposed. The Ombudsman’s decision should be 

binding on the local authority. 

Government MO 

OSMOG re Code of Conduct 

Update to complaints handling 
documentation 

 

 

24



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

 

 
15 

The Local Government Transparency Code 

should be updated to require councils to publish 

annually: the number of code of conduct 

complaints they receive; what the complaints 

broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of 

interest); the outcome of those complaints, 

including if they are rejected as trivial or vexatious; 

and any sanctions applied. 

Government MO 

Standards Committee 

 

 

16 
Local authorities should be given the power to 

suspend councillors, without allowances, for up 

to six months. 

Government MO  

 

17 

The government should clarify if councils may 

lawfully bar councillors from council premises or 

withdraw facilities as sanctions. These powers 

should be put beyond doubt in legislation if 

necessary. 

Government MO  

 

18 
The criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 

relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests should 

be abolished. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO  

 
19 

Parish council clerks should hold an 

appropriate qualification, such as those 

provided by the Society of Local Council 

Clerks. 

 
Parish councils 

 
Parish Councils  
Oxfordshire Association of 
Local Councils (OALC) 

 

25



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

20 

Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 

should be amended to state that parish 

councils must adopt the code of conduct of 

their principal authority, with the necessary 

amendments, or the new model code. 

Government 

Legislative 

Parish Councils  

OSMOG  

 

 

21 

Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 should 

be amended to state that any sanction imposed 

on a parish councillor following the finding of a 

breach is to be determined by the relevant 

principal authority. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO 

OSMOG re Code of Conduct 

Update to complaints handling 

 

 

22 

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 

(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 

should be amended to provide that disciplinary 

protections for statutory officers extend to all 

disciplinary action, not just dismissal. 

Government 

Legislative 

MO 

 

 

 

 
23 

The Local Government Transparency Code 

should be updated to provide that local 

authorities must ensure that their whistleblowing 

policy specifies a named contact for the external 

auditor alongside their contact details, which 

should be available on the authority’s website. 

Government MO 

S151 Officer 

 

 

24 
Councillors should be listed as ‘prescribed 

persons’ for the purposes of the Public Interest 

Disclosure Act 1998. 

Government MO  

26



    

 
APPENDIX 1 

List of recommendations  

Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 

  

 

25 

Councillors should be required to attend formal 

induction training by their political groups. 

National parties should add such a requirement 

to their model group rules. 

Political groups 

National political 
parties 

Political groups  

 
26 

Local Government Association corporate peer 

reviews should also include consideration of a 

local authority’s processes for maintaining 

ethical standards 

Local Government 
Association 

MO  

 

 

 

 

 

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Rishi Sunak MP 
Minister for Local Government 

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government 
Fry Building  
2 Marsham Street  
London  
SW1P 4DF 

Leaders of local authorities in England 

Dear Colleague, 

Tel: 0303 444 3460 
Email: rishi.sunak@communities.gov.uk 

www.gov.uk/mhclg 

7th March 2019 

Publication of councillors’ and candidates’ home addresses 

I am writing to draw your attention to changes the Government has introduced to the rules 
applying to local government elections and which are now in force. Following a commission 
by the Prime Minister, the Parliamentary Committee on Standards in Public Life published 
last year its ‘Review of Intimidation in Public Life’. In that review, the Committee 
recommended that: Government should bring forward legislation to remove the requirement 
for candidates standing as local councillors to have their home addresses published on the 
ballot paper.  

The Government wishes to avoid capable individuals being deterred from standing for office 
because they believe the process risks their safety or makes them vulnerable to abusive 
activity and accepted this recommendation in its response to the Committee’s report. 

Accordingly, Parliament has now amended the rules that apply to local government, parish 
council, and local and combined authority mayor elections, removing the requirement that 
each candidate’s home address must be published during the election process and be 
included on the ballot paper. The requirement for each candidate’s qualifying address to be 
published during that process has also been removed and Returning Officers and other 
electoral administrators should take care to avoid disclosing such addresses during an 
election count. 

The changes made mean that now all candidates in local government elections in England 
will be able to request that their home address is not made public. Candidates will have a 
choice – they can continue to include a home address if they wish to highlight their local 
connection to their ward. In addition, candidates will in future provide their ‘qualifying 
address’ address separately. The Statutory Instruments making these amendments and their 
explanatory memorandums setting out detail and policy background can be found here: 

The Local Elections (Principal Areas) (England and Wales) (Amendment) (England) 
Rules 2018 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/1308/contents/made 

The Local Elections (Parishes and Communities) (England and Wales) (Amendment) 
(England) Rules 2018 

APPENDIX 3

29

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/1308/contents/made


TEMPLATE FRAMEWORK – NOT TO BE USED FOR SUBMISSION 
OF DRAFT ANSWERS 

 

 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/1309/contents/made 
 
The Local Authorities (Mayoral Elections) (England and Wales) (Amendment) 
(England) Regulations 2019 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/351/contents/made 
 

Handling of sensitive interests  
 
The Committee also recommended that local authority monitoring officers should ensure that 
members (councillors) required to declare pecuniary interests are aware of the sensitive 
interest provisions in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Guidance for councillors on the sensitive interest provisions in the Localism Act 2011 and 
declaring of personal interests can be found in the Department’s document “Openness and 
transparency on personal interests: a guide for councillors”. 
 
An interest is classed as sensitive where the member and the monitoring officer, who is 
responsible for the register of members’ interests, consider that disclosure of its details could 
lead to the member, or a person connected to the member, being subject to violence or 
intimidation.  In these cases, other than stating that the member has an interest, the details 
are withheld. The Government would encourage monitoring officers to look sympathetically at 
such requests where there are legitimate concerns of abuse or intimidation. 
 
Conclusion 
 
As the report by the Committee on Standards in Public Life said, “Everyone in public life must 
play their part in taking responsibility for combatting intimidatory behaviour”. Intimidation is 
unacceptable and it is vital that councillors feel able to raise concerns about intimidation, and 
that those in leadership positions in councils take any concerns seriously, and deal with them 
appropriately – whether that is under the Council’s Code of Conduct, using staff disciplinary 
procedures or involving the Police. The Government today is also making a broader update 
to Parliament on actions being taken to tackle intimidation in public life.  
 
I am copying this letter to all local authority chief executives. I would be grateful if you would 
bring these issues to the attention of all the current members of your council, and to those 
officers with responsibilities for these matters – your council’s Returning Officer for local 
elections and other electoral administrators, and your council’s monitoring officer. It is a high 
priority for the Government that our processes for election and for ensuring accountability 
and transparency do not expose those holding or standing for public office to abusive activity 
or personal risk. 
 
This letter will also be published on GOV.UK to help provide guidance in the future. 

 

RISHI SUNAK MP 

30

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/1309/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/351/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/240134/Openness_and_transparency_on_personal_interests.pdf


 
 
APPENDIX 3 

List of best practice Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards. 

 
Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in 

codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment, 

supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition. 

Oxford City Council position: this is not included in current Code of Conduct which is 
a common document adopted by all of the Oxfordshire local authorities.  This best 
practice proposal will be discussed at a meeting of the Oxfordshire Monitoring 
Officers.  

 
Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring 

councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation, and prohibiting trivial or 

malicious allegations by councillors. 

Oxford City Council position: included in the revised Code of Conduct complaints 
handling documentation – March 2019. 

 
Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and 

regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and 

neighbouring authorities. 

Oxford City Council position: the current Code of Conduct which is a common 
document adopted by all of the Oxfordshire local authorities and has been subject to 
periodic review.  This best practice proposal will be discussed at a meeting of the 
Oxfordshire Monitoring Officers. 
 

Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and the 

public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises. 

Oxford City Council position: The Code of Conduct is published on the website and is 
available on request from the Monitoring Officer. 

 
Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least 

once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV. 

Oxford City Council position: Details of the “gifts and hospitality” received is 
available on line by searching the profile of an individual councillor.   

 
Best practice 6: Councils should   publish a clear and straightforward public interest test 

against  which  allegations  are  filtered. 

Oxford City Council position: We do this; it is included in the revised Code of 
Conduct complaints handling documentation – March 2019. 

  

31

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/892/code_of_members_conduct
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors


 
 
APPENDIX 3 

List of best practice Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards. 

 
Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent 

Persons. 

Oxford City Council position: The Council currently has four Independent 
Persons and proposed to appoint the same number in July 2019 for a further 5 
year term. 

 
Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake a 

formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to review and comment 

on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being without merit, 

vexatious, or trivial. 

Oxford City Council position: We do this; it is covered by the revised Code of 
Conduct complaints handling documentation – March 2019. 

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct 

following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible on 

its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by the 

allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, and any 

sanction applied. 

Oxford City Council position: We do this; it is included in the revised Code of 
Conduct complaints handling documentation.  Following a formal investigation the 
Monitoring Officer’s Decision Notice is published on the website under the 
Standards Committee – March 2019. 

 
Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance on 

its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for 

handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes. 

Oxford City Council position: We do this; it is covered by the revised Code of 
Conduct complaints handling documentation – March 2019. 

 
Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor 

towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a whole, rather than 

the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances. 

Oxford City Council position: this is a matter for a parish council and the 
Monitoring Officer will remind all Parish Councils of this recommendation   

 
Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and 

management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils 

within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training, 

corporate support and resources to undertake this work. 

Oxford City Council position: these arrangements are in place. 
 

32

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20170/councillors/362/standards_and_conduct_arrangements_for_councillors


 
 
APPENDIX 3 

List of best practice Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards. 

 
Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any 

conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps 

should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the 

investigation. 

Oxford City Council position: these arrangements are in place and available 
when required.  Members of the Law & Governance team have been 
commissioned to undertake investigations for other local authorities. 
 

Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which 

they own as part of their annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their 

relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by 

the Nolan principle of openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and annual 

reports in an accessible place. 

Oxford City Council position: These arrangements are in place.  The 
Monitoring Officer is in the process of reviewing the governance arrangements 
for the Council’s wholly owned subsidiary companies and other “separate 
bodies”. 
 

Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or 

group whips to discuss standards issues. 

Oxford City Council position: These arrangements are in place. 
 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the  
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
on Monday 25 February 2019  
 
 

Committee members: 

Councillor Aziz (Chair) Councillor Fry 

Councillor Gotch Councillor Wolff 

Hancock Simpson 

Councillor Lygo (for Councillor 
McManners) 

Councillor Simm (for Councillor Pressel) 

Officers:  

Anita Bradley, Monitoring Officer 
Andrew Brown, Committee and Member Services Manager 
Catherine Phythian, Committee Services Officer 

Also present: 

Councillor Hancock (Parish Councils representative) 
Ben Simpson (Independent Person) 

Apologies: 

Councillor(s) McManners, Pressel, Ballinger, Cole and McCleery sent apologies. 
 

13. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

14. Minutes of previous meetings  

The Committee approved as a correct record the minutes of the previous meetings on 
11 September 2018 and 1 November 2017. 
 

15. Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and individual 
dispensations - 1 September 2018 until 31 January 2019  

The Monitoring Officer presented the information report on the number of complaints 
received under the Members’ Code of Conduct and the number of dispensations to an 
individual member, granted under Section 33 of the 2011 Localism Act. 
 
The Monitoring Officer referred the Committee to Table 4 on page 11 of the report 
which summarised the three complaints that had been dealt with since 1 September 
2018, all of which concerned parish councillors.  For two of these, no action had been 
taken as the complaints were about employment matters rather than conduct issues.  

35

Agenda Item 9



 

The Monitoring Officer informed the Committee that the third complaint (reference 
14755) had been reassessed, in consultation with an Independent Person, and the 
conclusion was that there was no longer a public interest in pursuing this complaint.  
There were no particular lessons to be drawn from any of these cases. 
 
The Committee reflected on the important role of the Monitoring Officer in guiding and 
advising parish councils, particularly in relation to code of conduct matters. The 
Monitoring Officer indicated that she intended to establish closer links with the other 
three parish councils as previously her involvement had been concentrated on dealing 
with the complaints from the one parish council. 
  
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that no requests for individual dispensations had been 
received. 
 
The Standards Committee resolved to note the report. 
 

16. Assessment criteria and proposed changes to the complaints 
handling process  

The Monitoring Officer presented the report which invited the Committee to consider, 
and recommend to Council, the proposed changes to the “Complaints Handling 
Arrangements” documentation and the introduction of formal assessment criteria.  The 
Monitoring Officer explained that the third recommendation was obsolete as the formal 
assessment criteria were included in the revised “Complaints Handling Arrangements” 
documentation and as such were covered by the first recommendation. 
 
The Monitoring Officer explained that the she had undertaken the review the Council’s 
complaint handling arrangements with a view to making the process more open and 
efficient if possible whilst continuing to ensure that it remained fair and independent.   
 
The Monitoring Officer highlighted the most significant changes: 

 the inclusion of assessment criteria which the Monitoring Officer in consultation with 
an Independent Person will have regard to when establishing whether there are 
valid grounds to investigate a complaint.  The criteria include “official capacity” and 
whether an investigation would be in the “public interest”.  

 a new section setting out indicative timescales for each stage of the complaints 
process.   

 changes to the complaint form which now requires complainants to specify which 
parts of the Code of Conduct they believe have been breached and what remedy 
they are seeking.  

 
The Committee welcomed the proposed revisions to the documentation which they 
considered offered the general public a clearer explanation of the overall process and 
placed appropriate emphasis on objective, evidence based decision making. 
 
The Committee suggested that the draft documentation should be amended to include 
a definition for “public interest” and “politically motivated” and a more detailed 
explanation of the role of the independent person.    

36



 

 
The Standards Committee resolved to recommend Council to: 

a) Approve the proposed changes to the “complaints handling arrangements” 
documentation as detailed in the report;  

b) Delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to amend and agree the final text and 
design of the draft “Complaints Handling Arrangements” documentation (as set out 
in Appendix 2). 

 

17. Review of member training in 2018 and proposals for future years  

The Monitoring Officer introduced the report and reminded the Committee that one of 
the changes agreed by Council as part of the last Constitution Review was to broaden 
the role of the Committee to receive reports from the Monitoring Officer on all aspects 
of member training, not just training on ethical issues. 
 
The Committee noted: 

 the evaluation of the training delivered in 2018 (Appendix 1) which indicated that 
while feedback was positive overall there remains scope for improvement. 

 the training proposals for 2019-20 (Appendix 2) which build on the current 
approach of compulsory training in code and licencing; optional planning sessions 
and additional optional sessions on unconscious bias, mental wellbeing and the 
effective use of social media.  

 the outline proposals (Appendix 3) for the development of a member training 
programme for 2020-24.  

 
In response to a question from the Committee the Monitoring Officer advised that 
training for parish councillors was the responsibility of each individual parish council 
and that the Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils were best placed to provide 
professional support and training as necessary.   
 
The Committee commented on the need for all councillors, but especially newly 
elected councillors, to be kept fully informed of changes to the organisational structure 
of the Council. The Monitoring Officer undertook to consider how to achieve this and to 
report back to the next Standards Committee meeting. 
 
The Committee noted that further thought was to be given to the involvement of 
members and officers with the “project team” tasked with developing the proposals for 
the member training programme 2020-24 and suggested that the member involvement 
should be on a cross party basis. The Committee agreed that the Chair and the 
Monitoring Officer should take the lead in establishing the “project team”. 

 
The Standards Committee resolved to: 

1. Note the evaluation of the programme of training delivered to members in 2018; 

2. Endorse the arrangements for the member training programme for 2019-20 based 
on the proposals set out in Appendix 2; 

37



 

3. Endorse the proposed approach for the development of a new member 
development and training programme for the municipal years 2020-24. 

 

18. Social media protocol for councillors  

The Monitoring Officer presented the report which proposed a draft social media 
protocol for councillors.  The protocol had been developed in response to the 
recommendation of an external investigator, agreed by Council, that the authority 
should adopt a social media policy that will offer additional guidance to members on 
the use of social media. The document would be known as a “protocol” rather than a 
policy in order to comply with administrative arrangements within the Council. 
 
The Committee welcomed the draft document and suggested that it should be 
expanded to include a definition or statement on what is meant by the term “social 
media”.  The Committee asked that the final document be made available in hard copy 
and in electronic format.  The Committee noted the advice contained within the 
protocol regarding the potential risks associated with councillors engaging with social 
media during meetings; they suggested that this should be brought to the attention of 
committee Chairs so that they could brief committee members accordingly.  The 
Monitoring Officer undertook to address these points. 
 
The Committee noted the Monitoring Officer’s intention to reference the social media 

Protocol in any future revision to the Code of Conduct so that it would form part of the 

Constitution. 

The Standards Committee resolved to: 

a) Approve the social media protocol for councillors as set out in Appendix 1; and 

b) Delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to finalise the text and format of 
the final document to take account of the amendments proposed by the 
Committee (as detailed above). 

 
 

7pm: Councillor Gotch left the meeting during consideration of this item. 

19. Committee on Standards in Public Life - Local Government 
Ethical Standards  

The Monitoring Officer presented the report which provided an update on the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life’s (CSPL) consultation on ethical standards in 
local government. The CSPL published their report on 30 January 2019 and made a 
number of recommendations to the government which aim to strengthen the standards 
regime and build an “ethical culture” in local authorities. 
 
The Monitoring Officer highlighted those recommendations which sought to clarify and 
broaden arrangements for registering and declaring members’ interests, strengthen and 
clarify the role of Independent Persons, manage conflicts of interest in more complex 
governance environments (e.g. where councils own companies) and make a model 
code of conduct available to all councils (as was the case prior to the Localism Act 
2011). 

38



 

 
The Monitoring Officer said that the Council was already following some of 
recommendations e.g. registering gifts and hospitality, including a public interest test in 
complaint handling arrangements and addressing new areas of behaviour such as the 
use of social media. The Committee noted that as many of the recommendations would 
require a legislative change, the timescales for which were uncertain, the Monitoring 
Officer would maintain a watching brief on the matter. 
 
The Standards Committee resolved to note the officer report on the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life report on Local Government Ethical Standards. 
 

20. Dates of future meetings  

The Committee noted the dates of future meetings. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.20 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair …………………………..   Date:  Monday 24 June 2019 

39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and individual dispensations - 1 February 2019 until 31 May 2019
	6 Appointment of independent persons 2019
	7 Review of Member training in Quarter 1 2019/20
	8 Update report - Committee on Standards in Public Life
	Appendix 1 - List of recommendations
	Appendix 2 Letter from the Minister for Local Government
	Appendix 3 - List of best practice

	9 Minutes of the previous meeting

